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MILITARY COMMISSIONS TRIAL JUBICIARY
GUANTANAMO BAY, CUBA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AE 30

¥, il fense Motion to Campel
. Production of Witnesses

MAJID SHOUKAT KHAN
February 28, 2019

1. w3 eliness

w15 motion is timely filed pursuant to the Ar.nchdcd Litigation and Trial' Sehaduiialg
Order dated December 12, 2018 (AE 0168B). |
2. mRelief Sought

. {21 Khan, by and through his ondersigned counsel, respectfully requests that the
Military Judge grant this motion and order the Prosecution o produce the Defense’s requested
witnesses to testify in person in connection with his senfencing, inchuding E;i support of his
fortheoming motion for prefrial punishment credit and other presentencing moticng, Mr., Khan
specifically requests that the Military Judge order production of the 29 individuals identified as
Witnesses #1, 2, 6-11, 14, 17,27, 31-33, 40, 42, 44, 47-43, 53, 54, 63, 66, 67, 73-75, and 85 in

the Defense’s request for production that was served on the Prosecution on January 2, 2019. See
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Attachmer;t e

misimd. |, Khan further requests that the Military Judge order the Prosecution io meet and
canfer in good faith with the Defense as to each of the Defense’s other requested witnesses, As
explained below, this relief is necessary because the Prosecution, having initially requested an
in-person meet-and-confer conferance to discuss the Defense’s request for production of
witngsses, and having abruptly cancelled that conference as it was scheduled to begin, has
refused 1o negotiate with the Defense about its requested witnesses.

3. "y rden of Proof

S h e moving party must demonstrate by a prepondsrance of the evidence that the
requested relief is warranted. See RM.C. 905(c); RC 3.8.
4, wilgieyverview

s, s Mr. Khan has explained in recent filings, he intends to present an extensive
extenuation and mitigation case, and to argue for a sentence of less than 19 years in the
presentencing progeedings and/or as a matter of ¢lemency. He also intends to move for pretrial
punishment credit against his sentence to reduce effectively any term of additional imprisonment
that be may be required to serve afler his sentence is imposed. In order to do this fully émd
adequately, Mr. Khan reguires = substantial number of witnesses to appear in person and testify
on his behalf at his sentencing hearing and related proceedings. In pacticular, Mr, Khan’s
extenuation and mitigation case must cover a 20-year time period. He must prasent a thorough

and compelling social history thet extends from his high school gréduation in 1999 and the death

‘il oric of these requested witnesses are addressed in the body of this motion, Others are
addressed only in Attachiments C and B to the rootion beeause their identities or the substance of
their anticipated testimony are or may be classificd. See also AE 029 (M.C.R.E. 503 notice).
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of his mother in 2001, which bcgf;uﬁ his transformation from g typical Baltimore @nager toa
high-value detaince at Guanténamc, through the present time, as well 28 matters concerning his
rehabilitation and whether he is likely to present & future threat of dangerousness. The breadth of-
this case, a5 well as the nature and extent of Mr. Khan's brutal torture in CIA detention, and his .
subsequent decision to plead guilly and €00 perale without exception for seven ycars-&espﬂe the
treatment and conditions he was subjacted to, are sxceptional by any reasonable measure.
=s=Relhig case certainly bears no msembiénce to the ordinary court-martial where, for

-exammple, a typical cooperating defendant may make one or two drug pumhas.es_ for eriminal
investigators In 4 sting operation shortly before being sentenced, It is not fike an ordinary court-
martial where & convicted defendant may seek to present only general evidence of good character
and reputation. It is also not like an ordinary military or civilian case where a dcfendxlmt
convicted at trial or by guilty ples would Ef; abie fo bring wilnesses into the couriroom to testify
af sentencing without permission from the prosecution. Nor is this case like 4! Darbi, or other
military coramission guilty plea cases at Guanténamo, where there was %iis!'e practical advantags
i pmsenﬁn’g an extensive sentencing case becanse the aconsed had an agreement to be

transferred from Guantdnamo soon after sentencing.” Mi> Khan has no such deal.’ Hiconly

“eePrDespite their transfer deals, and contrary to the hardiine position taken by the Prosecution
in this case, the Prosecution permitted at least three family members of former detaines David
Hicks to travel from Australia to Guantdnamo for his sentencing. Former detainee Omar Khadr
was also pstmitied fo bring a Canadian professor with whom he had studied to Guanténame, and
to call a former Staff Judge Advocate at Guanténamo to testify on his behalf at sentencing by
videokink, :

=HOn Bebruary 22, 2019, Mr. Khan submitted to the Convening Authority a proposed
modification of his plea agreement, which, if aceepted, would give up his sentencing case in
exchange for his transfer from Guanténamo in two years.

3
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chance to obtain an actual or effective sentence of lsse than 19 yoars and be reunited with his
family before he reaches his 50s is fo present a substantial extenuation and mitigation case,
which his pretrial agresment specifically aliows him to do.

=FrBut neither the Military Judge, the military panel, the Convening Autharity, nor
cthers who will decide Mr, Khan’s fate can properly address the relevant metters of substantial
significance or determine an appropriate sentence without hearing testimony from witnesses who
were directly and personally involved with Mr. Khan during each step of his Jong journey from
life in Baltimore, to his brief but undisputed invclvement with terrorism, to his brutal torture in
CIA detention, to his transfer to Guantinamo, and to his decision to accept full-responsibility and
atone for his actions. See United States v. Willlams, 3 M.J. 239, 243-44 (CMLA. 1977) (holding
that testimony of witnesses who knew the acoused at different and succeeding periods of time is
matéﬁal 1o sentfericing and not cumulative): United States v. Horma, 4 MI. 938, 939 (U SN 5
M. Rev. 1978} (holding that family background is material to sentencing feiinwipg guilty plea);
of also, e.g., United States v. Thomas, 33 M.J. 644, 647-48 (N-M, Ct. Mil. Rev, 1991y (denying
ineffactive assistance of eounsel claim where de;ﬁause counsel “put on cxtensive extenuation and
mitigation evidence, including the testimony of family and non-family witnesses . . . ali of whom
described appellant’s personal and professional background from the time he was born through
the time of trial. They testified as to his non-violent manner, his potential for rehabilitation and
his ability to be a productive _indiﬁduai even in prison. A chaplain testified as to appeliant®s

strong religious convictions, convern for his family, and his ability 1o be a productive member of

society™).
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=@l hose who will decide Mr. Khan’s punishment must hear directly {rom character
\;rimesses such as the former Staff Judge Advocate at Guanténamo, a senior military officer who
knew Mr. Khan personally for a period of years, recognized that he was materially different from
other high-value detainees in terms of his character and motfivation, and was intimately involved
Eg Mr. Khan's 38&‘355{?!1_ to plead guil?y gnd cooperate (Witness #27). See United States v,
Carpenter, | ’\4} 384; 386 (C.MLA. [976) (holding that stipulation was not adequate substitute
fior personal appearance of superior military officer fo provide charater evidence at sentencing).
They must also hear from others who have been, an;I cantinue to be, responsible for Mr. Khan's
daily care and rehabilitation at Guantinamo {Witnesses #14, 17, 31).
wgimln addition, those who will decide Mr. Khan’s fate must hear from hostile witnesses

such those responsible for Mr. Khan’s brutal torture, whose demeanor and manner of testimony
on the witness stand would be particularly important to observe in person {Wﬁtnesses #40, 42, 44,
47-49, 53, 54, 63, 66, 67, 73-75, 85). Their testimony about Mr. Khan's torture is essential to
show the éx.tent to which he has already heen punished severely for his offenses, See United
States v. Sweeney, 34 CM.R. 379, 384-85 (C.MLA. 1964) (court “wholeheartedly agreefs]” that
witnesses’ personal appearance and manner of testifying, personal integrity, and demeanor on the
witness stand go to weight of the tesiirnunif, and would be lost and ineffective if witncsses cc;uiti
not testify in person).

. m—lor can an appropriate sentence be determined without hearing from those directly
impacted by the offenses to which Mr, Khan pled guilty and who have suffered in his subscquent
absence. These witnesses include, for example, his wife (Witness #9}, his young daughter whom

he has never met (Witness #10}, and a victim in this case (Witness #11). Each would provide

[+
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compelling testimony favorable to him. As explained below, the substantial weight and
credibility of the in-person testimaony that such witnesses would provide 1s obvious. Put another
way, could there be more persuasive testimony in extenuation and mitigation of Mr. Khan’s
sentence than for him to meet his daughter for the fivst time ever in the courtroom? To hear from
this child about the impact of his absence on her life in Pakistan, without ever knowing him, and
how she and her mother, Mr. Khan's wife, remain feacful each day in their village outside of
Karachi because they live under threat from terrorist groups as & direct consequence of his
cooperation with the U.S. government? Or to hear a victim in this case express sympathy for Mr.
Khan, who has accepted legal responsibility for the terrorist acts that caused this person’s serious
injuries? There is precedent in courts-martial and these mi[itary commissions for such
testimony.

/o1, the Prosecution has improperly denied Mr. Khan’s requests for nearly all of his
requested witnesses, including the foregoing individuals and others who may be willing to testify
voluntarily at Guantinamo. The Prosecution has also refused to meet and confer or otherwise
negotiate with the Defense; concerning the Defense’s witnesses, The Military Judge should
therefore grant this motion in its entirety.

5. m——acloround ‘
A, "T®Core Themes of Mr. Khan’s Extenuation and Miti ation Case
i, 5 . Khan®s family and other witnesses will testify, Mr, Khan moved to the United
States with his family in 1996, seitied near Balimore, Maryland, and obtained political asylum
status in this country. He graduated from Owings Mills High School in 1999, and continued to

live and work in the area. He bought a home, paid taxes, and supporied his family.

rmmprmrmesetese R s ey e—
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== April 2001, his mother died from hepatitis. Her death was devastating to Mr.
Khan, his seven siblings, and their father. Mr. Khan, the sixth sibling and voungest of the four
Khan sons, was particularly distraught by the loss of his mother, with whom he wags the closest
among the Khan children. Her death threw Mr. Khan’s life into turmoil, which was compounded
by the profound insecurity and difficulty of his being effectively stuck between two cultures,
neither of which suited him entirely, Mr, Khan was the son of a traditional Pakistani family,
with all the attendant responsibilitics of working tulltime to support his family financially, even
while in high school, and with the expectation that he live 2 modest, conservative lifestyle. He
was also young, popuiér, and ambitious, and he strove to be a disk jockey, have a girlfriend, and
lead a typical_ “American” lifestyle. He was confused, lonely, frustrated, and miscrable.

-@Uﬁn what is undoubtedly a familiar theme for those who are lost, Mr. Khan turmed to
religion. ‘He became more devout and looked to Islam to provide answers to questions about
who he was, and to give purpose and meaning to his life. He altered his life to fit a more Islamic

- style and spent more {ime worshiping at the Islamic Society of Baltimore. He taught computer
classes to students there and continued to explors his interest in religion. But he was still lonely
and unhappy——so.much so that at times he felt that he wanted to die,

"Pin FPebruary 2002, Mr, Khan went to Pakistan fo get married. His marriage was
arranged to one of his cousins. Although he was only in Pakistan for a short time, it was at this
point that Mr. Khan was introduced by certain members of his extended family to terrorism in
Pakistan. They told him in essence that if he wanted to live a proper Islamic life, Al Qacda was
the true path for him. Unfortunately, in what Mr. Khan came to realize too late was a grievous

error of judgment, he believed them,
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i, {r. Khan returned to the United States soon afier getting married, and his father and
siblings begged him to stay away from extremism and confiscated his travel documents. But Mr.
Khan eventually deceived his father into aliowing him to return to Pakistan later thet year-—a

pivatal moment that neither father nor son has recovered from, or will likely ever recover from,

emotionally—where he resumed and -ciee_bene;:i his involvement with terrorism. This led to Mr.
Khan’s capture in March 2003, only @ year after traveling fo Pakistan to get married, and his
disappearance into secret CIA detention. For more than two years afterward, Me, Khan’s family
had no ides where he was or whether he was alive. They placed his portrait on the mantel of
their family home, next to his deceased mother’s, believing that they would never see him again.
Mr. Khan's wif%.ai‘so thought that their daughter-who was born shortly after M.
Khan’s capture, would never meet her father.

i he point is that M. Khan was not born an extremist or a terrorist. He also did rot
simply wake up ong day and decide that he wanted to become involved with Al Qasda and
commit ferrorist acts. Mot did he aet out of hatred for the United States or those who have been
hurt by his action:_s, Rather, his involvement with terrorism, and the reasons that he iz in the
gitustion that he is today, are the result of 2 serié of events and cholces that he made in his life,
all of which he fully acknowledges and accepis responsibility for, and deeply regrets. This is a
core theme of Mr. Khar’s case in extenuation and mitigation of his sentence,

A s addressed in his request for production of witnesses, additional themes of his
sentencing case that must be explained fully and adequately to the Military Judge, the military
panel, the Convening Authority, and others who will decide his fate Iacludé: his torture and other

unlawful abuse in CIA detention; his decision to plead guilty and cooperate with the U.S.
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government; his physical and mental healih; and his rehabilitation, Iikelibiood of futurs
dangerousness, and prospects for successfusl reintegration into socisty after release. See
Attachment C, § 6; see also R.M.C. 1601(h) Ea;idressing- sentencing principles of rehabilitation,
general deterrence, specific deterrence, and social mﬁribu.ﬁon}; RM.C. 1001(F}(1) (guilty ples is
a mitigating factor ot sentencing); see alse 18 U.S.C. § 3555(a) (federal sentencing factors).
Each concerns 8 matter of substantial significance 1o the determination of Mr. Khan’s
appropriate san':c-.n-t,;e. See RM.C. 1001(3{2). |

B. =fseroduction of Mr. Khan’s Reguested Witnesses Is Bssential to Matiers of

Substantia] Significance fo the Determination of 2n Appropriate Seafence

miigiimiis, order 1o present fhese matters of supsﬁan'ﬁai significance 1o the determination of his
sentence effectively, it is essential that Mr, Khan be allowed to call witnesses of bis choosing to
testify in person in support of his extenuation and mitigation cass, Indeed, among other rslévant
provisions in his plea agreement, Mr. Khan specifically bargained for the right to call “live
witnesses and present evidence” in e'xienuétion and mitigation for sentencing purposes. See AE
012, §21. His ability to call live wilnesses is particularly Emp;)rﬁa;ﬁ for several reasons.

mmeriirst, the Prosecution insists that he is not entitled to tﬁ'e production of ey
exculpatory or other favorable evidence in extenuvation and mitigation nf his senience. See AE
628, If the Prosecution is correct that Mr. Khan is not entitled to production Iﬂf}.??'ady- material,
which the Defense disputes, see id., witness testimony would constitute essentially the only
evidence at sentencing. Because Mr. Khan pled guilty and agreed to cooperate there would not
bé a sufficient trial record or other factisal basis for determining an appropriste sentence in this

case without witness lestimony. The Stipulation of Fact entered at the time of his plea may be
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sufficient to prove Mr. Khan’s guilt, but it does not address matters in extenuation and mitigation
of his sentence.

gy godidition, witness festimony is imperative to the determination of an appropriate

. sentence in arder to rebut the Prosecution’s sentencing case. The Prosscution has signaled its

intention to present an aggravatiqn case and attempt to maximize the punishment imposed on
Mr. Khan, despiie the fact that he is the only high-value detainee who has agreed to cooperate
;with the government, and despite the fact that he has for seven years always provided complete
and truthful informati an; never changed his facts, never minimized his own role and
responaibility for his actions, and never looked back from the “leap of faith” that he took when
he decided to cooperate with the United States. Tn:. at 82. The Prosecution will undoubtedly ask
the military panel to impose the maximum sentence ﬁf 40 years allowable under the sentencing
range established in the plea agreement, notwithstanding the sentencing caps provided for
clsewhere in the agreement. See AE 012, 145, 8; AE 013, 94 1, 3. Despite Mr Khan’s
exceptional record of cooperation, the Prosceution also continues to cast some doubt as to
whather it Qill afford him the benefit of his bargain and verify that he has cooperated as required
under the terms of his plea agreement in order to cap his maximum sentence at no more thag 19
yerts, See, a.g, AE 0264, at 3 nl.

=i ny withholding of cooperation cradit would not be in good faith, padicufarly if the
Prosecution were somehow to misconstrue Mr, Khan’s attempt to obtain a sentence of less than

19 vears, which his ples agreement explicitly allows, or the zealous advogacy of his counsel on
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his behalf as “non-cooperation” under the ferms of his plea agmement.“ But the fact remains that
because Mr. Khan pled guilty énd gave up his right to a trial of his guilt, his extenuation and
mitigation case presents his only opportunity to present evidence and explain to the panel and
others who may determine his puﬁishment his personal story, the significance of his decision to

- cooperate despite his horrific torture, as well as the nature and extent of his cooperation, and the
other factors he has set forth above. It is the only way for him to build an evidentiary record to
support his request for a lesser punishment. See Unlted States v. Manos, 37 C.MLR. 274, 278
(C.M.A. 1967} (explaining that because a military panci imposes punishment in post-finding
proceedings, military rules “clearly envision™ that an accused is entitled to present evidence and
witnesses who may testify in mitigation and extenvation); #d at 279 {explaining that bacau.se the
government may obtain an “easy conviction™ via an accused’s guilly plea, it is particularly
important for an accused to try fo mitigate his or her punishment with reference to applicable
sentencing i‘acla}rs}l.

s, 3 1. Khan has élse explained, his presentation of an effective case in extenuation
and mitigation of his sentence will be a significant undertaking. To be clear, again, this is nota
case where a convicted defendant will seck to introduce only general evidence of his or her good
character and reputation. It will require a substantial number of witnesses fo testify on his behalf
conceming several infer-related sentencing themes that span a period of 20 years of his life.
There is simpb} no way for the Military Judge, the military pana};, the Convening Authority, or

others who will decide his fate to determine and impose an appropriate sentence without hearing

‘"o the conteary, failure to develop and present a robust mitigation case at sentencing could
constitute ineffective assistance of counsel. See Wiggins v Smith, 535 U.S. 510, 522.23 (2003},

I
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the testimony of witnesses who were directly and personally involved with Mr. Khan during
each step of his long journey, which will culminate with his sentencing starting July 8th, Noz
may they assess the weight and credibility of these witnesses” testimony fully and adequately
exoept by bringing them to the conritzoom in person. The only altemative is imposition of a
sentence on a cold and sparse record—which is likely exactly what the Prosecution wanis here.

€. =@Sehe Prosccution’s Refusal o Meef and Confer or Negotiate
Regardine M, Khan’s Request for Produgction of Witnesses

gy January 2, 2019, in accordance with the scheduling srder entered in this ca:ée, wee

AE 016BB, the Defense served the Prosecution with a request for production of 115 witnesses.
The request included detailed information about each individual, their anticipated testimony, and
why their in-person testimony was important to Mr. Khan's extenuation and mitigation cass, See
Agtachment C. The Defense also indicated that it expected some of its requested witnesses to
travel o Guantdname voluntarily to provide testimony, but that they would require travel orders
and other logisticgi_suﬁpoﬁ to enter th.c Naval base. See id, 3. Inaddition, the Defense asked
to meet and confer with the Prosecution concerning the Defense’s witness list. See id, {5,

| =T Janvary 13, 2019, the Prosecution contacted the Defense to arrange 2 time to meet
and confer regarding the Defense’s request for production. The Defense responded the same day
and the parties arranged to meet at a secure location on January 29, 2019, Shortly thereafier, the
partics discussed logistics for #*ae conference, specifically taking into account that some of the
Defense’s request for production was classified. The Prosecut'ian also indicated that it would
respond to the request witness-by-witness in a chart form, identifying sach of the requested
individuals by the numbered request (as the Defense has referred to some of the witnesses in this

mation). The Defense also spent considerable time planaing for the conference and reviewing its

12
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request for production to determine where negotiation and agreement among the parties might be
possible.

wgioiis 1 that cffort was in vain. On January 29, 2019, after the Defense had already
assembled for the cc&ference, the Prosecution abruptly cancelled the conference and stated in
substance that it would not negotiate regarding the Defense’s witness list. ‘The Prosecution
indicatsd that it would grant only a few of the Defense’s requested witnesses, and, when
contacted by Mr. Khan’s counsel by telephone, provided no further explanation for its denial of
the witness requests and its refusal to participate in a meet and confer with the Defense.

miim( ) February 1, 2019, the Prosecution served the Deferise with its response to the
Defense’s request for production of witnesses. It denied substantially all of Mr. Kﬁan’s :
requested witnesses in a blanket, conclusory fashion on the ground that he had failed to satisfy
the requirements of R.M.C. 1001({e)(2)—a rule that applies only 10 sentencing witnesses whaose
attendance requires 2 subpoena oF tr%vei orders at government expense, and which would not be
relevant as to several of the Defense’s requested witnesses in an ordinary court-martial or federal

criminal trial where they could appear at the courthouse voluntarily.

st only witnesses that the Prosecution approved were Mr. Khan's two experts

(Witnoesses #32, 33}, and three witnesses whe would be most benefit the Prosccution™s own

It also approved the testimony by |
d

videoconference of Mr, Khan's father, who does not speak English and would plainly be unable

to testify effectively via remote access (Witmess ¥8), and one of Mr. Khan’s siblings whom the

Prosecution mey consider the least harmful to its own case (Witness #1). See Attachment D.

i3
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i This motion followed,
6. migl o and Argument

=ftFrHaving failed 1o persnade Mr. Khan to give up a substantial extenuation and
mitigation sentenecing case, it appears that the Prosscution’s current strategy is to use its
administrative powers to contra! the produstion of witnesses, and, more specifically, to control
who may or may nof fravel to Guantdname by any means, in order to prevent Mr. Khan from

" presenfing a robust sentencing case. To be direct, the Prosecution is effectively usin g its ability

to control who can or cannot set foot on the base to undermine Mr. Khan's sentencing case and
thercby bolster its longstanding desire for Mr. Khan o sceede to whatever sentence the
Prosecution believes he descrves. This is clear in several respacts.

=55 First, the Prosecution has denied nearly ali of Mr, Khan’s requested witnesses
regardiess of whether they might be willing to appear and testify voluntarily on his behalf, and
regardiess of whether they would be gble to provide their own funding for travel fo the base. For
example, even though many of Mr. Khan's family members are U.S, citizens who could
purchase their own plane tickets on the regular AMC Rotator or IBC Alr commercial flights to
and from the base in order to appear and testify at his sentencing, the Prosecution apparently will
not issue them country clearances. Az noted above, the Prosecution also denied compietely My,
Khan's request for his wife and daughter in Pakistan, who have the necessary passports and exit
visas to attend the sentencing.

mieli| he Prosecution likewise denied the former Staff Judge Advocate, who will return
from an overseas deployment in time for the hearings in July. More sirikingly, the Prosecution

denied a victim in this case whe previously traveiled to Guantdnamo at the poveroment’s

14
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invitation for p;.:rpoae:s of attending Mr. Khaw’s guilty plea proceedings. Again, the Defense
understands that each of these individuals would provide important and compelling testimony on
Mr. Khan's behalf. The Prosecution has simply acied to b?ack Mr. Khan from calling those
witnesses who would be most helpful to his case. [t has done so without any individualized
analysis or explanation of why.his requests for these individoals are insufficient to permit their
appearance; the Proscoution simply ignores most of the witnesses.

aiigin™ 1 bly, too, as explained in Attachment E, the Prosecution has denied every single
witness who would testify about Mr. Khan's torture, It has attempted instead to excise Mr,
Khan's toriure entirely from his sentencing pmceecﬁngs despite its obvious significance o his
extenuation and raitigation case, and the determination of an appropriate sentence. See also
R.M.C. 1001{c), Discussion.” Indeed, these witnesses are essential to show the extent of the
pretrial punishment that Mr, Khan endured, and to placs his decision to cooperate despite his
torture in its appropriate context, '

=il ost there be any doubt that these decisions were driven not by the merits of whether
Mr. Khan's requests satisfied the requirements of RM.C. 1001{e}(2), but rather by
considerations of whether or to what exient cach withess would testify favarabiy for Mr. Khan, it
is helpful 10 consider the victim requested by Mr. Kﬁan {Witness #11). The Proseeution brought
this individual to Guantinamo in Febroary 2012 to attend Mr. Khan's guilty plea and speak ata

press conference afterward that was attended by media from around the world. More recently,

‘w4 5 noted below, the government has gone so far as to imply that if Mr, Khan were to
pursue seatencing credit for his torture, that might vielate a term of his plea agreement that
prevents him from suing officials or agencies of the U.S8. government-for damages as a result of
his torture, See¢ infio at 24-27 & Altachment F, at 2.

15
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the Prosecution interviewed this same person sbouf the possibility of testifying for the

Prosecution at Mr. Khan's sentencing. When the person Informed the Pwse:cuti{m {and later the
Defense) that the person would teptify favera&ly 1o Mr. Khan—including by stating that this
person was living a full and vibrant life dts;.;aite serious injuries sustained as a result of Mr.
Khan’s offense conduct, that this person believed that Mr. Khan was fess culpable than other
high-value detainess, that he had suffered enough, and that he should not be punished further as
long as he presented no threat of future dangerousness—the Prosecution not only decid.ﬁ;d not o
gall this person to testify, but denicd the Defense’s requsst o call this person on the purported
ground that the person’s anticipated .test'inmny was not relevant, material, or necessary to Mr.
Khan's sentencing,

mie 1o anticipated live testimony of this individual plainly could not be more necessary,
or the weight and credibility of this person’s testimony more important, to Mr. Khan’s
exteration and mitigation case or to the determisation of an appropriate sentence, Tndeed, by
making this person unavailable based on the substance of the person’s anticipated testimony
because if weuld be heipfﬁi to Mir. Xhan's sentencing case, the Prosecution comes dangerously
close to obstruction.® In no event Is the denial legally justifiable.

sl the contrary, given the unique circumstances of‘;this case described above, the
denizl of this witness and the other requested witnesses would viclate the Constitution, and the

Military Commmissions Act of 2009 and related authorities. In addition, for the reasons explained

SR February 27, 2019, as this motion was nearing completion, the Defense received #n
email from the victim indicating that this person had decided not to make a statement regarding
Mr. Khan's sentencing. The Defense understands that the email was sent after priog '
communication with the Prosecution.

ia
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below and in Attachment E, sach of the witnesses that Mr. Khan moves to compel the
Prosecution to produce satisfies the requirements of RM.C. 1001(e)(2) and applicable case law.

L = The Prosecution’s Refussl fo Compel Production of Mr. Khan's
Requested Witnesses in Order to Frevent Him from Presenting o

Substantial Extensation and Mitiestion Case s Unconstitutional

=sipEiyvan setting aside the language Mr Khan's ples agreemant, which permits him to
call live wﬁtnf;ssesg see AE 012, § 21, the Prosccution’s attenipt to stop defense witnesses from
testifying is a clear violation of Mr. Khan’s Fifth and Sixth Amendment rights. The Fifth
Amendment’s Due Process Clause and the Sixth Amendment’s Compulsory Process Clause each
‘guarantees every eriminal defendant the opportunity to present a complete defense during both
irial and se,nm;ming proceedings. See, e.g., Holnes v, South szrﬁ?fﬁa, 547 U8, 319, 324 (2006);
United States v. Davenport, 445 F.3d.366, 372 (4th Cir. 2606). As the plain text of the Sixt%ll
Amendment makes clear, having this opportunity necessarily entails the right to present
witnesses favorable to the defonse, See U.S. Const, amend. VI; Washington v. Texas, _3_38 U8,
14, 19 (1967); Sweeney, 34 CMR. at 382,
=y he struciural importance of this right cannot be overstated. Safeguarding the
Defense’s ability to select and call witnesses is not only a crucial efement of fair process, but, in
an adversarial system i-fke ours, is also necessary to protect the basic objective of any legitimate
judicial proceeding—to uncover the truth. See Holmes, 547 U.8. at 330-31. For iﬁis reason, and
as the Supreme Court has repeatedly made clsar, *{flew rights are more fundamental than that of
an accused {o present withesses in his own defense” C"hambers v. Mississippi, 419 U8, 284,

302 (1973); accord, e.g., Rock v. Arkansas, 483 U.8. 44, 52 (1987); Washingion, 388 U.S. at 19,

i7
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== ensure that this right is enforced, the Fifth and Sixth Amendments consirain any

prosecytorial or judicial action that would substantially interfers with a defendant’s ability to
present witnesses of his choosing. The government, for 'instapce, may not remove defense
witnesses from the United States, see, e.g., United States v. Leal-Del Carmen, 697 F.3d 964, 970
(5th Cir. 2012), may not threaten them in an effort to stop them from testifying, see, e.z., United
Slag;es v. Viera, 819 F.2d 498, 502-05 {5th Cir. 1987), may not advise the_m not to assist the
defénsc, se8, ez, United States v, Perer Kiewit Sons’ Co., 653 F. Supp. 73, 76-78 (D. Colo.
1986), and may nat otherwise discourage them from testifying in favor of the defense and agaimst
the government, see, v.g., United States v. Morrison, 535 F.2d 223, 227-28(3d Cir. 1976}, Even
courts must not rigidhy apply evidentisry rules that preclude important defense witnesses from
testifying, mé,-e.g,, Holmes, 547 L8, at 324-25, a:l':d must carafully avoid taking actions that

~ would frighten defense witnesses from the stand, see, e.g., Webb v, Texar, 409 U.S. 85, 96.98
{1972).

=@t hose principles make clear that, st the very least, the government cannot use its

authority to block defense witnesses” access to the courthouse. Uniled States v. Filippi, 918 £.2d
244 (1st Cix. 1990), is instractive, Just like the Prosecution’s refusal to permit defense witnesses
aceess 1o Guantinamo in this case, the prosecutor in Filippi failed fo arrange permission fora
foreign defense wimess fo enter the Unit;:d States for purposes of altending trial, T4 at 247, The
First Cirouit held that this “deliberate omission to act, where action was required, . . .
constitute{d] 2 violation of ‘l}l.h@ Sixth Amendment right to compulsory process and, derivatively,
the right to dus provess pfeix:cted by the Fifth Amendment” I The same result obtaing here.

Simply put, “the govemnment may not *simulianeously prosecut{e] the defendant and attempt] ]

18
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to restrict his ability to use information that . . . is necessary to defend himself against the
prosecution.”” United States v. Paracha, No. 03 CR 1197, 2006 WL 12768, at *10 (S.DN.Y.
Jan. 3, 26086) (alterations in original} {quoting United S?algs v. Fernandez, 913 F.2d 148, 154
{4th Cir. 1990)).

T his is not (o say that the government could not have a legitimate interest in sscurity
or in “withhold[ing] from disclosure the identity of [certain] persons” whose presence the |
defense has requested. Roviaro v. United States, 353 U.S, 53, 69 (1957). But even those
interests “must give way where,” as here, the relevant witnesses’ testimony is “relevant and
helpful to the defense.” Paracha, 2006 WL 12768, at *9 (quoting Rovario, 353 U.S. at 59); see
also United States v. Moussaoui, 382 F.3d 453, 466 n.18 (4th Cir. 2004) {“There is no qﬁestion
that the Government cannot invoke national sc-curity congerns as 4 means of depriving
Moussaoui of a fair frial.”). More importantly, the Prosecution simply has not articulated any
concerns about security at the Guantinamo facility, and, as explained above, some number of the
witnesses that Mr. Khan seeks to call are already known to Mr. Khan and to the public, and
would testify voluntarily on his behalf if permitted.

. =fErThe Prosecution’s Refusal to Compel Production of Mr, Khan’s

Requested Witnesses in Order to Prevent Him from Presenting a
Substantial Extenunation and Mitigation Case Violates the Military

Commission Act and Related Authorities
=fRrin addition to Mr. Khan’s Fifth and Sixth Amendment rights to compulsory process

of witnesses helpful 1o his sentencing, the Military Commissions Act of 2009 guarantees him “a

reasonable opportunity to obtain witnesses and other evidence,” and that opportunity “shall be

comparable to the opportunity available to a criminal defendant in a court of the United States

under [A]rticle I of the Constitution.” 10 U.S.C. § 949j(a)(1). In addition, “[pJrocess issued in
19
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railitary commissions . . . to compel witnesses to appear and testify and to compel the production
of other evidence . . . shall be similar to that which courts of the United States having uriminél
jurisdiction may lawfully issue; and shall run to any place where the United States shall have
jurisdiction thereof” Jd. § $19j(a)(2); see afse RM.C. 703(a). Military commission rules
fusther require that the Defendant have an “equal opportunity” to the Prosecution to present its
case, and “no party may unreasonably impeds the access of another party to a witness or
evidence.” R.M.C.701(); see also R.IM.C, T03(f); Manos, 37 C.M.R. at 279 (noting that courts
have duty to ensure equal treatmeﬁt for every litigant).

wiio{cre, the Prosecution’s denial of substantially all of Mr. Khan’s requested witnesses
contravenes these principles and Is unreasonable. In no meaningful sense can the Prosecution be
said fo have afforded Mr. Khan equal access to witnesses and evidence in this case. For
example, and without limitation, again, it has notably attempted to exciss from Mr, Khan’s
exteruation and mitigation case entirely any testimony or other evidence concerning his torture
despite the obvious relevance of his torture to the determination and imposition of his
punishment, and the fact that such tesiimony is explicitly permitted by his plea agreement, See
AE 012,99 21, 23, 26; AE 013, 9 4; RM.C. 1001(c) & Discussion. The Prozecution doss not
wanlt equal access to witnesses; it wants no access at all.

e 11 Prosecution has alse improperly denied Mr. Khan's request to call a victim, who
previously traveled to Guantdnama for purposes of this very case, but apparently only after
determining that person would testify favorably to Mr, Khan and perhiaps contrary 1o the
Prosecution’s view of Mr. Khan's appmpria%a punishment. See Sweeney, 34 C.MLR. at 382

{*[Defendant] may not be deprived of the right to summion to his 2id witnesses who it is believed

20
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may offer proof to negate the Government’s evidence or to support the defense.™). The
Prosecution has also similarly denied the former Staff Judge Advocate, who will have recently
returned from an overseas deployment and be available to testify in July, notwithstanding
precedent in these very r}ailitary commnisstons for s:m;h testimony. See supra note 2; see also
United States v. Rhodes, 1.4 M.J. 919, 921-22 (C.M.R. 1982} (“Inconvenience to the service that
must produce the _wimass before the court is not a valid consideration.”).

==P=The Prosecution has likewise denied Mr. Khan’s family members from appearing i.;z
petson, contrary to prior practice in the commissions. See supra note 2. It has sought
improperly to pick and choose, to its substantive advantage, from among Mr. IChan’s fami!'yl
members who would and would not be permitied to testify, and to limit the mode of their
festimony as to make it less compeling and effective. See supra at 13; Sweeney, 34 CM.E. at
382 (decisions about “[wlho these witnesses shall be is a maiter for the accused and his
counsel™); of, United Stetes v. Thornton, 24 C.MR. 256, 259 (C.MLA. 1957) (“An accused
cannot be forced to present the testimony of a material witness on his behalf by way of
stipulation or deposition. On the contrary, he is entitled to have the witness testify di;:ectly from
the witness stand in the courtroom.”). The Prosecution has also wielded its administrative power
o control who may set foot at Guantdnamo to biock Mr. Khan’s family and other witnesses who
might be willing to appear voluntarily. See supra at 11-12, 14.

i 5 10 the latter point, 10 U.S.C. § 948j(a)(1) and R.M.C. 1001{e)(2) are intended to
conform military practice with the rules and procedures followed in federal conrts. Sea_e Sweeney,
34 C.M.R. 3t 382, In particular, the provisions are intended to mirror Federal Rule of Criminal

Procedure 17(b}, which permits a court to subpoena witnesses at government expense for

21
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indigent defendants. See id. But with respect to witnesses who may appear voluntarily or

- otherwise not at government expense, the applicable faderal rule is rather Federal Rule of
Criminal Procedure 17(a), under which defense counsel may obiain a blank &-ﬂ;iporc:na from the
court clerk for completion and issbance to a witness to ensure his or her appearance at trial
without seeking leave of the court or the prosecution. Yet, Lmiiké a civilian federal case or even
&I-i ordinary court-martial, the only reason that the Defense must Move 1o compel production of
such witness at all under RIM.C. 1001(c}2) is because traveling io Guantdnambo requires travel
arders and country clearances—simple, routine paperwork—which the Prt;sacuticn is
withholding to its substantive advantage. At minimum, this factor should bear favorably on the
Military Judge's consideration of the Defense’s witness requests and the equities of this motion.
See Swwﬁey, 34 CMLR. ai 386 (explaining that all parties should be concemned with the right of
the accused to secure the attendance of witnesses, the need to seriously consider the witness
request, and taking necessary meastres to comply with the request).

Il  =fMr. Khan'’s Reguests for Pmﬂuctianl of Witnesses Satisfy the
Reguirements of R.M,.C. 1001(e}(2) and Applicable Case Law

=feotwithstanding the Prosecution’s unwillingness to negotiate with the Defense, Mr.
Khan has narrowed his witness list substantially to 29 individuals whose production he now
moves to compel. As explained in the Defense’s request for production of witnesses, thrm;ghout'
this motion, and in Attachment E hereto, each individual’s in-person testimony complies with the
requirements of R.M.C. 1001(e)}2).

st 5 any initial matter, there is presently no basis to consider whether alternate forms of
evidence would be sufficient to meet the needs of the Commission in determining an appropriate
sentence for Mr. Khan, Thatis so beca-use the Prosecution thus far has provided only blanket or

22
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conclusory dentals of Mr. Khan's witness requests; refused 10 negotiate with the Defense; failed‘
ta invoke any classified information or other evidentiary privileges; and failed to raise any
' practical difficulties of compelling witness tasti}ﬁnhy,' See RM.C. 1001(&)2)(C)-(E). The only

relevant inquiry at this time is whether the anticipated witness testimony is “necessary for
consideration of a matter of substantial significance to & determination of an appropriate
sentence,” and whether “[tJhe weight or credibility of the testimony is of substential significance
to the determination of an apprapriate sentence.” R.M.C. L001(e)}2)(A)(B),

ooIr. Khan has addressed those factors throughout this motion with reference to

| . witnesses who fall within four geﬁemi categories: his family, including his wife and daughter; a
victim iﬁ this case; Guantdnamo-related witnesses; and forfure witnesses, He will further address
_ only a few of them here. In abundance of caution, most will be addressed only in Attachment £,

which Mr. Khan incorporates herein by reference.

=53y, Khaw’s Family

s 1. Khan initially requested each of his siblings, his father, his wife, and his
daughter. The Prosecution approved only two of those individuals as witnesses, and only by
videoconference, Mr. Khan's father and one af his older brothers (Witnesses #1, 8). Mr. Khan
has since narrowed his witness request to four éf his siblings, his father, his wife and his
daughter (Witnesses #1, 2, 6-10).

THrAs deseribed here and in greater detail in Attachment E, there is no adequate
substitute in terms of the weight, credibility, and persuasiveness for the production of Mr.
Khan’s family members to testify on his behalf. The impact of M. Khan’s disappearance and

torture was devastating for his family members, including, in particular, his father. Mr. Khan’s

23
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capture, disappearance and absence has weighed significantly on his father. I called to testify,
for example, Mr. Khan's father 'wm;ild explain the temrible anxiety that he experienced while

‘ wondering, for a period of years, what had happened to his youngest son, and whether he could
have done more to avert the unfa@nam path that his youngest son had chosen. [t was’

particularly difficult for Mr. Khan’s father, as [t would be for any father, and for Mr. Khan's

wife-and their daughter -wiw was born after his capture and to this day has never

met her father.

=ttrEach family member will explain h.cw the terrible pain of Mr. Khan’s disappesrance
and absence has .imp@t&d and permanently altered the course of their individual ves. They will
explain bow their pairi was comnpounded when Mr. Khan's name appeared for the first time after
his disapge?;raﬁ¢e in the case ffnfrealf.&%atés v. Uzair Paracha, when prosecutors in the Souther |
Dise'rict of New York tevealed in late 2005 thet Mr. Khan was in U.S. custody, and when he later
| arrived at Guantdnamo in September 2006, The public pressure on Mr. Khan's family was
extraordinary. Revelations thet Mr, Khan had been tortured, including by %{sﬁerbaarding,

- heatings, and enal rape while in CIA custody only made the situation worse for them fo bear.
The impact of these revelations was so great that Mr, Khan’s father h.ss become clinicaily
depressed, and suffers from anxiety, diabetes, and high blood pressure. Indeed, he has serious
heart discase and may not survive ta see his son released from custody before the expiration of a
sentence not o exceed 19 years.

=feSuch zn impact statement could not be effectively conveyed to the Military Judge or
the militery panel remotely, however, because Mr, Khan’s father does not speak English. The

weight and credibility of Mc. Khan’s father’s testimony also could not be assessed sufficiently

z4
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via videoconference. Rather, it will be critically important and powerfully petsuasive to see the
anguish and tears of Mr. Khﬁn’s father in person on the witness stand when he talks about what
has happened to his youngest son and the impacet it ha.§ had on their family. ¥t is also essential to
Mr. Khan himseif to see his father in person for the first time in more than sixteen years—and
potentially for the last time in his father’s life—in the courtroom.

sy i, Khan's Experts

mmmw ingl point merits attention here. Mr. Khan has requested that his two government-

funded experts appear and testify in person on his behalf in connection with his sentencing and
related proceedings (Witaesses #32, 33). The Prosecution has approved those requests; in the
case of Mr. Khan’s torture expert, the approval is subject to resolution of the conflict issue
addressed in the AE 026 series. See Attachment D, at 3. For its part, the Cpnvening Authority
has approved the Defense’s requn;st for appointment and funding of Mr. Khan's medical expert
as a witness, and deferred consideration of the Defense’s request to employ its lorture expert as a
witness pending resolution of the conflict waiver. However, one potential iséus cancémiﬁg the
production of these experts remains ﬁnrcsoived.
. waialy, its approvat of Mr. Khan's request for the medical expert to serve as an expert
: witnéss, the Convening Authority has included the following caveat

You also proffer that Dq'-uii} testify in support of an impending motion

for pretrial punishment credit. . . . [But] Article 13 .of the UCMI and Rule for

Court-Martial 305, pertaining to pretrial punishment, do not apply to Mr. Khan . .

.. Additionally; your impending motion seems directly inconsistent with

paragraph 11 of the Pretrial Agreement, which states that onece his guilty plea is
aceepted, Mr. Khan will not initiate any legal claims against the United States

Government regarding his capture, detention, or confi nement conditions prior to
the plea. Consequently, Dr*s not approved to testify in support of any
motion for prewial punishment eredst,

25
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Attachment F, at 2.

== e Convening Authority’s message in this regard is abundantly clear. First,
although the Prosecution has approved Mr, Khan’s reguest to produce his medical expert, the
Convening Authority is purporting to deny Mr. Khan’s request for his medical expert to appear
and testify in connection with his pretrial punishment motion, which the Convening Authority |
purports fo decide for itself is not applicable In this case as a matter of law. Second, as noted
above, see supra note 5, the Defense understands that the Convening Authority is threatening
defense counsel that if Mr, Khan litigates a pretrial pzmishmeht motion in an attempt to reduce
the effective term of any sentence of Imprisonment that may be imposed, that effori—simply
presenting that legal arpument on behal{ of Mr. Khan-—could be considered by the Convening
Authority as grounds (o move to withdzlaw from his plea agreement.

s e Convening Authority’s conduct is wholly improper in each regard. As an inftial
matter, the suggestion that simply requesting pretrial punishment credit would violate paragraph
11 of the plea agreement is frivolous, at best. Paragraph 11 prohibits Mr. Khan from swing the -
United States or its agencies or officials for his torture, which, of course, he has not done. See
afse, e.g., Tr. at 84 (Trial Counsel: “our upderstanding of the PTA is Mr. Khan is limited fiom
suing officials or agencies of the United States Govemment";} {emphasis added); id at §4-85
(Military Judge: “this only applies to the United States and its agencies us defendants™)
(emphasis added). It is Mr, Khan who is the defendant here, not the U8, government or its
agencies or officials. Moreover, as explained at length in recent filings, Mr. Khan's plea
agreement and applicable law expressly permit him to present factual and legal arguments about

the determination of an appropriate sentence, including based on his toriure,

26
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sy’ | worst, the Convening Authority’s statement could reasonably be viewed as an
attempt to pressure Mr, Khan’s defense counsel ot to raisc a viable legal claim for pretial
punishment {:radét, or to advoeats zealousty for their client, as they are of course ethicaily
obligated to do. tis aleo fairly interpreted as an improper attempt to influence and subvert the
sentencing proceedings in this case; it certainly raises that appearance. See R.M.C. 701(}),
Discussion (“Convening authorities . . . sl*lmuizi make no statement, oral or written, and take no
action which could relascmabiy be understood to discourage or prevent witnesses from testifying
before a military sommission, or as a threat of retribution for such testimony.”); see also RM.C.
104(a) (prohibiting, among other things, attempts o wem or influence the professional
judgment of defcns% counsel). But the Prosecution’s interpretation of Mr. Khan's plea
agreement does not control, and peither does the improper interpretation by the Convening
Authority: only the Military Judge’s interpretation does.

wgimit, ccordingly, to the extent the Convening Authority has attempted fo prevent Mr.
Khan's experts from appearing fo testify on his behalf in connection witha particular hearing
related to his sentencing, in support of a pretrial ;;unishment motion, the Miiifsry Judge should
compe! the Prosecution to produce the experts at such a hearing, or at any sentencing-related
hearing in this case. The failure to do so under these circumstances would constitute reversible
ervor. See United States v,. Sears, 43 CM.R. 220,224 (CM.A. 1971) {“[Clapitulation to the will '

of the convening authority . . . [regarding which witnessas may be called to testify is] an abuse of

diseretion.”).
T
27
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7. g clusion

seThe motion should be granted, and the Military Judge should order ‘iha Prosecution to
produce the 29 witnesses roquested by the Defense, The M ilitary Judge should alse order the
Prosecution to mest and confer in good faith with the Defense as to each of the Defense’s other
requestad witnosses. .

8. =Geibral Argument
e Military Judge has scheduled a hearing for the week of April 1, 2019 to resolve

witness production issues. See AE 016BB, at 2.
9, WM Vitnesses and Evidence
g [ witnesses or evidencs are required.
lﬁﬁ-ﬂerﬁﬁmte of Confersnce
==9-The parties have conforred. The Prosecution has not stated its position within 24
ours and is therefore prosumed o object to the requested relief. RC 3.5.k.

119 4 ditional Information

sl [Defense has no additional inf:}ﬁna‘tim%m present st this fime,

12 st of Attachments

A.wimCcrtificale of Service, dated February 28, 2819,

B il -oposed Order. |

CERCASSIFIED Defensc request for pmﬁucﬁnﬁ of witnesses.

I I osecution response to Defense roquest for production of witnesses.

B, mmm—— A SSIFTED Supplement. |

F. mieConvening Authority’s response to Defense expert witness request (Dr.,
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Respectfully submitted,

S5
I, Wells Dixon
Civilian Defense Counsel
CENTER FOR CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS
666 Broadway, 7™ Floor
New York, NY 10012

Katya Jeatin

Civilian Defense Counsel
JENNER & BLOCK LLP
919 Third Avenue

Wew York, NY 10022

Natalie K. Orpett

¥arthik P. Reddy

Civilian Defense Counsel

JENNER & BLOCK LLP

1099 New York Avenus, NW, Suits 900
Washington, D.C, 20061

Jared A, Hernandez

Detailed Defense Counsel
Lieutenant Commander, JAGC, U.8. Navy
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= CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

gl Cortify that on thiz 28th of February 2019, I cansed AE 39, Defense Motion to
Compel Production of Witnesses, (0 be filed with the Military Commigsions Trial Judiciary and
thereaiter to be served on or made available 10 all counsel of record.

A
J. Wells Dixon
Civilian Defense Counsel

3i
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sansccnce SR omeerrrroreree

MILITARY COMMISSIONS TRIAL JUDICIARY

GUANTANAMO BAY, CUBA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AE___
. "TOT Proposad Order}
Defense Motion to Compel | %
MAJID SHOUKAT KHAN Production of Witnesses %
March __, zaqu‘ ‘
N

mimiali5id Khan's metion to compel produstion of witnesses {Aﬁg\%is herehy

GRANTED, Q/
e Prosecation is hereby ORDERED fo prod @mws requested witnesses

1
identified as Witnesses #1, 2, 8-11, 14, 17, 27, 31-33 4@4, 47-4%, 53, 5463, 68, 67, 73~
735, and 83 in the Defense’s request for producti : %ﬁs.sewed on the Prosecution on fanuary

¥ ORDERED to meet and confer in good faith with

2.2019. Ses AR 030, Attachment C.

migisit ho Prosecution is herebyDw(lh
other requested witnesses.

the Disfense as to each of the ' '

-0 ORDE @m day of March 2018

(§§Q Military Judge
I |
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2 Jan 2019
1 EMORANDUM FOR CHIEF PROSECUTOR

==PrEom LCDR Jared A, Hernandez, JAGC, USN, Detailed Defense Counsel

—&R-Subject: DEFENSE REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF WITNESSES IN UNITED
STATES v. MAJID KHAN,

i o f (2) RM.C. 703
{b) R.M.C. 1001

il [y accordance with references () and (b), and the Amended Litigation And Trial
Scheduling Order (AE# 016BB), the Defense requests the following witnesses be produced by
the Government at presentencing and/or interlocutory hearing(s).

momiied  The Defense respectfully requests the Government produce all of the listed witnesses.

smfimin 3. The Defense requests the Government produce all of the requested witnesses because
these witnesses cannot travel to Naval Station Guantanamo Bay {NSGB) without the
Governnent's assistance, This assistance mncludes, but is not limited to, the issnance of travel

orders and thester/country clearances. The Defense expects several witnesses (family members,
FBI agents, former prosecutors, anticipated Defense experts, the victim,h
m etc.) to travel voluntarily. In the event any witness declines to travel

voluntarily, the Government should compel the witness’s attendance at NSGB in order to testify

in person at the presentencing proceedings and/or interlocutory hearing(s).

mpimas.  The Defense provides the contact infonination for certain witnesses including members of
the Khan family and certain other witnesses below. For all other witnesses, contact information
is known to the Government with the exception of witnesses #98-113. The Defense will provide
contact information for those individuals at 2 later date when it is obtained by the Defense’s
investigator who has not yet been hired and cleared to meet with My, Khan,

mbdsaedi.  Fach witness’s sppearance in-person is required due to the unigue facts and
circumstances of the case under the factors defailed within R.M.C. 703 and R.M.C. 1001, and by
the First, Fifth and Sixth Amendments of the United States Constitution, However, the Defense
reguests the opportunity to meet and confer with the Government concerning this request for
production.

s, Fach of the requested witnesses will provide relevant and material information including,
without limitation, testimony in extenuation and niitigation at Mr. Khan’s sentencing. This
information includes, without limitation, information concerning; ay Mr, Khan’s family
hackground; b) how Mr. Khan became involved with terrorism; ¢) Mr. Khan's actions as
described in the stipulation of fact; d) the nature and duration of Mr. Khan’s capture, detention,
and confinement; €} Mr. Khan's decision to plead guilty and cooperate with the Government, his
substantial assistance to the Government, and his continuing fulfillment of his cooperation
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obligations; f} Mr. Khan’s physical and mental condition; g) Mr. Khan’s rehabilitation,
likelihood of future dangerousness, and prospects for successful reintegration into society. The
Defense provides a synopsis of each witness’s expected testimony below.

el i ily of Mr. Khan:

i ach of the following witnesses (#1-10) will testify about Mr. Khan’s family and personal
background; how Mr. Khan became involved with terrorism; Mr. Khan's rchahllﬂt&hon,
likelihood of future dangerousness, and prospects for successfial reintegration into society.
Additionally, they will testify as to the fmpact of Mr. Khan's detention and torture on the Khan
family.

2
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milsinuyrent and former Government officials imvelved in Mr. Khan’s case:

mertach of the following witnesses (#12-25) will testify about Mr. Khan's actions as described
in the stipulation of fact; the nature and duration of Mr. Khan's capture, detention, and
confinement; Mr. Khan’s decision to plead guilty and cooperate with the Government and his
substantial assistance to the Government at different periods of time; Mr. Khan's physical and
mental condition; Mr. Khan’s rehabilitation and prospects for suecessfil reintegration into
society. In particular, these witnesses will testify that Mr. Khan continues to fulfil] the terms of
his cooperation agreement with the Government and does not pose a future threat,

mothy W. Harvey, BRI

Appeliate Exhibit 030 (Khan)

Filed with TJ
28 February 2019 Page 3% of 92

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE



UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

—-—-umm

T4 mm (ichae] Fregeau, FBI - Baltimore

ITF

16 Cseqr A, Ramirez, FRI — JTT

17mimmmys ety A, Schwarz, FRI - ITF

18 miwm] ey Seawell, FBI - JTF

st ereem—— 5
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10 Brian A. Ozden, FBI - JTF

20 M it | ast Name Unknown, NYPD
21 ity 2 vid C. Cudmore, FBI - JTF

22 iy’ || 5oufan, FBI
23 mimipi o nhen Gaudin, FBI

24mruthur M. Cumimnings, 11, FBI, Executive Assistant Divector, National 1 Security Branch

7
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oinf Task Foree (JTE) GTMO:

= ach: of these witnesses (#26-31) will testify about the nature and duration of Mr. Khan’s
detention and confinement at NSGEB; Mr. Khan's physical and ments! condition at NSGB; and
Mz, Khan's rehabilitation, likelihood of future dangerousuess and prospects for successful
reintegration into socicty. Each individual will testify regarding his or her personal knowledge
of these matters for the particular timeframe that they interacted with Mr. Khan directly.

26 mui— ;v A dmiral David B, Weods, JTF Commander
a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
i He will testify regarding the approved removal of Mr. Khan fom Camp 7 and
the creation of his current facility.

2] et AT Thomas J, Welsh, JAGC, USN, SJA JTF

a. Contact Information:
i. Emaik ’!’homas,wa!si_
b. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
L Mr. Welsh was instrumental in facilitating Mr. Khan's decision to plead guilty
and will testify regarding his efforts.
il. Mr. Welsh will detail that he spent ncarly every single day with Mr, Khan
while he was SJA.
i, Mr. Welsh will provide testimony that he referred to Mr, Khan as his fifth or
sixth child.

28 W lonel Donnie Thomas, IDG Commander
a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
i. Mr. Thomas was responsible for Mr. Khan’s conditions of confinement during
his tenure as JDG Commander and will provide testimony regarding Mr.
Khan's detention,

20 migeieml olone] Steven Gabavies, JOG Commander
a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
i, Mr. Gabavics was responsible for Mr. Khan's conditions of confinement
during his tenure as JDG Commander and will provide testimony regarding
Mr. Khan's detention

309 Camp 7 GICs (2006-2019)
a. Swnopsis of Expected Testimony:

emeas e 8
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1. These individuals will testify they were responsible for Mr, Khan’s conditions
of confinement and day-to-day interactions with the guard force, DSMP, and
other personnel,

31 mitemie a1y 7 Senior Medical Officers (2006-2019)
a. 3Sypopsis of Expected Testimony:
i. These individuals will testify they were responsible for Mr. Khan’s healthcare
and medical Ireatment. They will testify regarding his physical and mental
health including the harm caused by his torture and abuse by the CIA.,

siisimA nticipated Defense Experts:

TETA synopsis of testimony for these witnesses (#32-33) will be provided in accordance with the
milestones set within the Amended Litigation And Trial Scheduling Order (AE 016BB).
However, we reasonably expect these witnesses to testify about the nature and duration of Mr.
Khan's capture, detention, and confinement; Mr. Khan's physical and mental condition; and Mr.
Khan's rchabilitation, likelihood of future dangerousness and prospects for successful
reintegration into society. Contact information was previously provided to the Government
within each expert consultant request.

33 mimim/1r. Steven Kleinman

ey hite House:

=~FeEach of these witnesses (#34-35) will testify about the nature and duration of Mr, Khan’s
capture, detention, and confinement. They will testify regarding the implementation and
execution of the CIA's RDI program. They will also testify that the CIA lied to the White
House, the Department of Justice, and the United States Congress concerning the RDI program
and its use of torture. '

34 mbmme' resident George W, Bush
a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
i, President Bush will testify regarding the memorandum of notification
authorizing the RDI program and delegation of the program to the CIA.

35 mideiaely 0011000 00228 Rice

a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
i. Ms. Rice will testify regarding anoivement with
the abuse of detainees at DETENTION 51 A1, inciuding Khalid el-

Masri who was detained with Me. Khan,
=5CIA Directors:

=feRrlach of these witnesses (#36-38) will testify about the nature and duration of Mr. Khan's
capture, detention, and confinement. In particular, these witnesses will testify regarding the

R ae 9

Appeliate Exhibit 030 {Khan)

Filed with TJ Page 43 of 62

28 February 2019

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE



UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

Memeorandum of Notification authorizing the implementation and execution of the CIA’s RDI
program. They will also testify that the CIA lied to the White House, the Department of Justice,
and the United States Congress concerning the RDI program and its use of torture.

Jomemmeoree Tenet
a 8 ynopsm of Expected Testumony:

1 George Tenet will testify regarding the RDI program’s formation and
implementation. Mr. Tenet will also testify regarding the Agency’s
management and oversight of the RDI program. He will also testify regarding
the contents of the May 2004 CIA Inspector General report and the Agency’s

TCSPOISe,

, & Michael Hayden
a Sy ‘m}psm of E“ipmlcd Testimony:

i Michael Havden will testifyr about the closure of ALEC station and the
shutdown of the R program,

38 miiniimio hi . Brennan
a. Synopsis of Expected Testimeny:

i John Brennan will testify concerning the CIA’s response to the SSCI report,
incleding concerning the use of rectal feeding(s) on Mr. Khan, Mr. Brennan
will also testify concerning the Panetta Review which corroborates the SSCI
report.

o1 A Oporations Directorate / National Clandestine Services (NCS):

25w for Black, Director CIA's CTC
a. S}m; psis of Expected Testimony:
i He will provide background of the CIA’s efforts against al-Qaeda.
it He will detail the overall strocture and function of the CTC within CIA.

40 w1105 Pavitt, Deputy Director of Operations _

a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:

. . 10
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L Mr. Pavitt will testify specifically about the establishment and operation of the
RDI program including the decision to target, capture, detain and interrogate
M. Khan.

il He will testify about the evolution of the RDI program from its inception
through his departure from CIA, including the establishment of DETENTION

SITE COBALT and the problems that exisied there -ﬁ its

closure.

42,

Lt ixa-Jose Rodriguez, Head of CTC -Depmy Director of
{)peraiiansq
a. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:

i Mr. Rodriquez will provide testimony regarding the CTC’s operation during
the time of Mr. Khan’s canture and detention
ii. Mr. Rodriguez will provide detailed testimony concerning Mr. Khan

i,

iv.

- 11
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i’} & Office of Medical Services (OMS) psychologists and contractors:

mfimiey ch of these witnesses (#58-66) will testify regarding the nature and duration of My, Khan's
capture, detention, and confinement and his torture while in CIA detention. Additionally, these
witnesses will detail the day-to-day operation of the RDI program, specifically concerning the
involvement of medical officials within OMS and the implernentation and execution of OMS
policy and protocols for the capture, rendition, detention, interrogation and torture of CIA
detainces, including Mr. Khan. The Defense expects these individuals to testify specifically of
the use of rectal feeding and rehydration, sleep deprivation, waterboarding, water-dousing, and
other EITs. We also expect them to testify regarding Mr. Khan’s hunger strikes, atiempted
suicide and acts of self-mutilation, including as described in the SSCI report.

58

i4
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O Tames Elmer Mitchell, Contract Pevehologist with the CTA
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b. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
L Mr. Mitchell will testify regarding his involvement in the interrogation, torture
and abuge of detainess, including Mr. Khan

6d OO Iohn “Bruce” Jessen, Contract Psvchologist with the CTA

b. Synopsis of Expected Testimony:
i Mr. Jessen will testify regarding their involvement in the interrogation, torture
and abuse of detainecs, including Mr. Khan.

e “!_!Bll&ﬂllﬂl!ﬂ!m 16
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= rDircctor(s) of CIA OMS from 2003-2006, whose identit vy is known to the Government, but
unknown to the Defonse -

TOTCIA and DOJ lawyers:

i’ 201 0f these witness will testify regarding the nature and duration of Mr. Khan’s capture,
detention, and confinement. They will also testify concernin £ the purported legality or
authorization of EITs such as those used on Mr, Khan, including, for example, waterboarding,
sleep deprivation, rectel feeding/sodomy and others. These witnesses will also testify concerning
the day-to-day monitoring of the RDI program and the CIA’s response to the CIA OIG report
and inquiries from other agencies, including the United States Congress.

66

&7,
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68 5AREEG-ohn Yoo, DOJ lawyer

m_——CiA Office Inspector General (OIG) and U.S. Senate Investigator:

i o ch of these witness will testify regarding the nature and duration of Mr. Khan’s capture,
detention, and confinement. They will also testify concerning the purported legality or
authorization of EIT’s such as those used on Mr. Khan, including for example, waterboarding,
sieep deprivation, rectal foeding/sodomy, and others. These witnesses will detail the totture an
abuses of detainees, inchzding Mr. Khan, at DETENTION SITE COBALT,

69. il b Helgerson, CIA OIG
a. Synopsisof Expected Testimony:
i M Helgerson will testify regarding details of his investigation in the RDI

program, specifically the erimes detailed within the CIA OIG report.

il He will detail why the reporl was started, the factual findings of the report and
the conclusions stated regarding the RDI program. '

iil. Mr. Helgerson will testify regarding all references to DETENTION SITE
COBALT and/or Mr, Khan detention, interrogation, and torture within the
CIA OIG report.

?G- _

71 . N aniel Jones, S8CI staffer and principal auther of the S8CI “Torture” Report
5. mgmemi ontact Information:
i, e ctonse will provide this contact presently.
b, Synopsis of Expected Testimony:

mseomsqussios SN o s 18
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el e

i Daniel Jones will testify regarding the substance of the redacted portions of
the S8CI, including the sections specifically regarding Mr. Khan.

wilpCTA operators involved in My, Khan’s capbuve, rendition, detention, and
interrogations, whaese identities are known to the Government, but unknown to the
Defense:

=forEach of these witness (#72-77) will testify specifically about their torture and abuse of Mr.
Khan as well as the nature and duration of his capture, detention and confine

77 m—=icdical officials involved in Mr. Khan’s capture, rendition, detention, and interrogations
while in CIA custody (2003-2006), whose identitics are known to the Government, but
unknown to the Defense,

T8 mememC1 A rendition team members, involved in Mr. Khan’s capture, rendition, detention, and
interrogations while in CIA custody (2003-2006), whose identities are known to the
Government, but unknown to the Defense

7. HHHEGHGY Kathryn Bigelow, Director, Zero Dark Thirty

g e— 19
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#5% Mark Boal, Writer, Zero Dark Thirty

=3 Jessica Chastain, Actor, “Maya,” Zero Dark Thiviy
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N S

Buleiman Abdusliah Salim AKA Tsse Al-Tanzania

87.

DTS, dditional JTF Personnel, specifically requested by Mr. Khan,
whose identities are known to the Government, but unknown to the Defense,

mimnt 'l of these witnesses (#89-97) will testify regarding the nature and duration of Mr. Khan's
detention and confinement at N3GB; Mr. Khan's physical and mental condition; and Mr. Khar'’s
rehabilitation, likelihood of future dangerousness and prospects for successful reintegration into
society. These individuals personally and frequently interacted with Mr. Khan over the course of
his detention at NSGB

m_mm-nsw (March 2012)

39 s < i (Jaruzry 2013)
_%w SIA (Feb 2013)

o1 sl < . 1.y 2013)

97 mfa R o0 e, (Oct. 2014)

93 el el 50 (i 2015

e N —— I
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4. Mﬁyﬁl {Sept. 2016)

m‘sw (Sept. 2016)

=tEEach of these witnesses (#98-113) will testify regarding Mr. Khan’s family background.

- 2
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114 mpiiis weicrey “Hank” A, Crumpton

IIS. IU.!‘LL/UT‘\H INCAPS

Synopsts of Expected Testimony:
i M _w ill testify regardi ng the operations of Blackwater contractors.

ii. He will provide details regarding Blackwater's contracted operations to
provide lt;mshcal_ services for to the RDI program, specifically the
iransportation of detainees and perimeter secarity of black sites.

iii. Additionally, Mfﬂﬁviﬂ explain why the security forces at and around
Camp 7 were inttially DOD contractors.

3
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DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
QFFIGE OF MILITARY COMMISSIONS
1610 DEFENSE PENTAGON
WASHINGTON, DC 20301-1810

FFICEOF THE | Februsry 2619
* OHIEF PROSESUTOR
MEMORANDUM FOR DEFENSE COUNSEL, UNITED STATES v MAIID SHOUEAT
KHAN

SUBIECT: GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TQ DEFENSE REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF
WITNESSES AT GOVERNMENT EXFENSE :

1. The Prosecution is in receipt of your witness list dated 2 January 2019 {hereinalles
“Request™) asking the Government to produce 110 specifie, named or tanamed individuals and
s unknown musber of oiber unuwmed individuals (o appear before the Accused’s
presentencing proceedings. Based an the infenmation provided and in aceordance with the
tentis of the pretrial agresment (PTA) between the Convening Authority {CA) and the Ascused,
the Prosccution:

{) will arrange for (he in-person presence of five of your nequested witnesses a1 the
presentencing hearing:

(b) will arrange for testimony via video teleconfersnce from the National Capital
Ragion for iwo of your requesied witnesses at the preseatencing headng, and

{¢) denies your request for production of all other requesied wimesses.

2. Rule for Military Comemission (R.M.C.) 1001{e) governs witness production a1 presentence

* procesdings. Military judges “may permit greater fntimds than on the merits to receive
information by means other than testinony presented through the personal appearance of
witnesses,” RM.C. 1001(e)(1). “Whether a witness shall be produced to westify during
presentence procesdings is 2 matter within the discretion of the military judge. subject to the
fmitations i RM.C. 703(c), (e}, and {£).” 4. See alse United States v. Combs, 20 M 1. 441,
443 (C.M.A. 19B5), “A witness may be produced io tesiify during presentence proceedings
...onty iP* the five conditions in RM.C. 1001{)(2){AE) are mer. R.M C.1001{e)(2). Those
five conditions are: ; .

{A) The testimony expeeted 10 be offered by the wimess is necessaty for
consideration of & matter of substantinl significatee o be a determination of ay
appropriate sentensy, including evidence necessary to resolve s sileged
inaccuracy or dispute as 1o o niaterial Saohl

{B) The weight or credibility ot the testimony is of subswatial significance o the
determination of an npproprinte seience:

(0} The other party refiises to enter into a stipulation of fact containing matiers t
which ilie wimess is expected (o lestily, exoept in o exifaordinary case when
such a'stipulation of fack would by an insufficient substinue for the testhwony;

{D) Other forms of cvidence, such as orel depositions, writicn inerrogatorics.
telephontic testimony, tvo-way video conferences or other similar technulogy, or
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former estinony would net be sufficient 10 meet the needs of the military
commission in the determination of nn eppropriute sentence: md

(B} The siznificance of the persenal appeazance: of the witness o the
detsemination of an appropriate sentence, when balanced against practical
difficulties of producing the witness, favoers production of the witness. Factors to
be considered include the costs of producing the witness, the timing of 1he reguest
for praduction of the witness, the potential for delay in the presentencing
progeeding fat may ke caused by e production of the witness, and lhe
likelilood of significant interference with intelligence astivitios, military
aperations or deployments, mission accomplishinent, or essentinl lEaining.

RMC, 1001{ek2}.

3. B.M.C. 703 specifies procedares for the production of witnesses fornilitary commiissions.
Pursuant to this mie, for witnesses in sentencing, the Defense is required 1o submit to tral
counse] 2 written list of witnesses whose production by the Govemment s sequested by the
Defense. See R.M.C. 703 (eX2HA). The request o producs & witness for sentencing saust
include: )

the name, telephone number, i krowa, and address or location of the witness

suel that the wimess can be found upen the sxercize of due difigence, & synopsis

of the testitony that it is expested the wimess will give, and the reasons why the

wimess' personal appesmnce will be necessary under the standards st forthin

RMC. 1001{c). )

RM.C. 703(c){2HB3G)

4. Despite your aasertion ihat cvery one of these witnesses was required fo fesiify in person
based on unighe facts and eircumstances of the case, that broad, talismanic recitation of
Jonguage from the rule does not meet the requirements of RAM.C, 1001(2)2) ar RM.C.

FO3 (2B, which requires an individualized justification for the In persen testimony of
each wimess, None of your individual witness synupses adequately indicates why thoss
individual wimesses nyust tesiify in person, which is the requirement under the rule.
Nevertheless, after carefully reviewing your request for the production of presentencing
witnesses at the expense of the Government, #nd in aceordanes with the applicable RM.C. and
M.C.R.E. previsions, the Prosecution will awange for the physical presence or video
teleconference stimony of the following witnesses:

o NN - 2osccution will amange fo-m testify via video

teleeonferense from the Natena! Capital Region,

k) _i'he Prosecution will srrange far-m testify via video

teleconference from the Nutions] Capiial Region.

&) Supervisory Special Agent (834 Timothy W, Harvey. The Prosecution will work with
the FBI ta make $5A Harvey available to testify in pevson af the Accused’s presentencing
hearing. If the Defeuse prefers a different FBI SA in Liew 0f S5A Hagvey, the Prosseution
will favorably consider the request and, if approved, will work with the Defenge to facilitate

Z
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the presence of said alernate FBI 8A to testify at the Accused’s presentencing hearing. To
allow time for Government review and coordiuation regading any such request for an
slternate FBI SA to tc*sixfy the Prasecntion invites the Defense to ﬂmsf’y the Prosscution 2s
soon us possible, if the Defense desires a different FBI SA 1o testify.

d} SA David €. Cudmove. The Prosecution will work with the FBI ro make SA Cudmore
available 1o testily in person st the Accused’s presentencing hearing. 1€ the Delbnse prefers
o differsnt FBI SA inlisu of SA Cudmore, the Prosecution will faverably consider the
request and, if approved, will work with the Defense (o facilitate the presence of said
sllernate FBI BA fo testily at the Acvused’s presentencing hesving. To allow time lor
Government review and coordination regarding sny such request for an alternate FRISA to
testify, the Proseoution invifes the Defonse to notily the Proseculion as soon s possible, if
the Defanse desives a different FRI SA 10 testify,

&) Doy Officer. The Prosecution will work with the Services lo make 8 compersnt officer
available to testify in person at the Accused’s prcsmtsncing hiearing regarding the
Accused’s vonditions of confinement and his interactions with the zusrd fovee, However,
by its agresment t praduce such witness, and in aceord with the tenns of the PTA signed
by the Accused and the CA, the Prosecition ﬁms not agree 1o the production of any mwrds
or other discovery ns a conseguense of agresing o pmduca a Bl officer. The Accusad
has waived production of any discovery beyond RM.C. 701(5)(1) and FO1(d), pursuant 1o
paragraph 12 of the PTA. If the Defense believes disoovery production would be required
1o use or examnne this wilness, the Prosecntion denies production of this winess.

) D, Expert#1). The Accused and the CA agreed that the Accused
“will not retain or present al o sentencing heaving more than two expert consuliants or
witnesses o Government expense.” AL 012 123, The CA approved Dy, s gne ol

the two expert mzasni%mie.’wimesses sothorized by the woms of the PTA. Subjectte D,
‘,biamm d security and couniry cleimmces, e Progecution will

arvange 1o hove D resent i oyder to testify i person 2t the Acoused’s
presentencing heming, :

g} (Expert#2), The Accused and the CA agreed that the Accnsed “will not retain or present
at a senteneing hearing more tran two expert consultants or witnesses al Government
expeise,” AE 012923 The CA disapproved Mr, Kleimnan as the second of the two expert
consultants/wimesses anthoxized by the tenus of the PTA due to 2 potentinl contlist of
jsterest. The CA committed to providing » siltable allemote expert. Provided such expent
docs not have d conflics of interest and obiains the required secarity and country clearances,
the Prosceution will smrange to bave it consultant/ex perd prosent in order {o teslify in
person af the Accused's preserdencing heaving.

5, The praduction a1 Govenmnent expense of all other naved and unnomed hdividuals Hsied in
the Defense Request is hereby denled becnuse they fll © meet the requinéments under RM.C.
1061 (e) and RM.C. 703. ,

§. The Prosecumtion notes that it i willing fo enter into appropriate stipulsiions concerming
verifiable Tacts that are relevans, essential and non-cunwilative to matters in exterustion and

mifigativn.
3

Appeliate Exhibit 030 (Khan)

Filed with TJ
Page 61 of 82

28 February 2019

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE



UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

7. The Prosesution also notes the Defense may request thet the military judze, “with respect o
matters in oxtenuation and mitigation or both, relax the niles of evidence. This may include
admitiing letters, nffidavits, and other writings of similar puthenticity and sefigbiliy”” MO
001(eX3).

. Should vou have any guestions, 1 may be reached in the office a-r by e-mail
at jov.lprimolimi

Respectfally,

Hslf
JIOY L. PRIMOCLI, Lt Col, 1ISAF
Frind Counsel j

fzﬁ'ﬁ
David L. O'Dowd, CDR, JAGC, USN
Assistant-Trial Counsel

Office of the Chief Proseoutor
_ Uffice of Military Cormmission
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st [ wrressrree mem

o TTACHMENTE
=f=Mr. Khan provides the following additional information concerning the anticipated

testimony of each of the witnesses that he moves o coropel:

Appeliate Ex
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=~

—UHROTOY FBI SA Tim Harvey (Witness #13)

= he Prosecution has agreed to produce this witness as requested by the Defense.

~—(EHABSTO)-FBI SAs at Guantanamo (Witnesses #14, 17, 21}

—AANGEORMNS Mr. Khan requested several FBI agents to provide in-person testimony on

his behalf concerning his day-to-day life at Guamanamo_

as well as his truthfulness, cooperation and substantial assistance to

the government, which bear directly on his rehabilitative potential and lack of future
dangerousness. The Prosecution has approved only one of those witnesses, FBI SA David
Cudmore (Witness #21), who is the FBI agent presently responsible for Mr. Khan. The Defense
roquests that the Military Judge compel the Prosecution to produce two additional FBI witnesses,
FBI SA Andrew de la Rocha (Witness #14), and FBI SA Beth Ann Schwarz (Witness #17), to
pravide similar testimony. Like SA Cudmore, these witnesses were previously responsible for
Mr. Khan at Guantanamo. Their testimony is necessary, and would not be cumulative, however,
because they will testify about their divect, personal, day-to-day interactions with Mr. Khan at
different, non-overlapping periods of time. Specifically, SA de la Rocha will testify about these
matters in the time period immediately after Mr. Khan’s guilty plea, and SA Schwarz will testify
about these matters after SA de la Rocha left Guantanamo and before SA Cudmore arrived.

—HABHOY The testimony of each witness would be particnlarly compelling given thei
official roles as FBI agents, and their close, personal relationships with Mr. Khan during distinct
periods of his seven-year cooperation. As important as his testimony will surcly be, it would be
wholly unrealistic to expect that SA Cudmore could provide full and adequate testimony

covering the entire seven years that Mr. Khan has been a cooperating witness for the

- Appeliate Exhibit 030 {Khan)
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government; while he may be able to read and review records of prior intcractions between Mr.
Khan and the other FBI agents, that would not be an adequate substitute from hearing from those
agents personally.

=IO The Prosecution has offered to produce an unnamed DOD official to testify
about Mr. Khan’s conditions of confinement at Guantanamo. See Attachment D, § d.e. As with
SA Cudmore, however, it would be unrealistic and inadequate to expect such a single DOD
official to testify competently about Mr. Khan's conditions for the entire seven-year period at
issue.

—EHFOBOA final point bears emphasis: The FBI agents are critically important to M.
Khan’s case because for nearly the entire time since his guilty plea in 2012, Mr. Khan has been
detained alone, separatc from any other detainees. Essentially the only people with whom he has
interacted are the FBI, the guard force, and medical persouncl.

sfsieeieC APT Thomas J. Welsh, JAGC, USN, SJA JTF (Witness #27)

S A PT Welsh is discussed at length in the motien to compel and Aftachment
C, and is one of Mr. Khan’s most important witnesses. In addition to the information alrcady
provided, he will testify about his interactions with Mr, Khan on a day-to-day basis, as well as
his interactions with other JTF lcadership about Mr. Khan, including Rear Admiral David B.
Woods, former JTF Commander, and Colonel Donnie Thomas, former JDG Commander.

e A PT Welsh is currently deployed overseas in Europe, but will be returning
to the United Statcs at or about the time of Mr. Khan’s sentencing trial. CAPT Welsh has
requested that he be issued a subpoena for testimony, but if called is willing to testify very

favorably for Mr, Khan in all of the ways that the Defense has described.

e = rreerem—
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eSS T here is also precedent for CAPT Welsh's testimony: his SIA predecessor,
CAPT Patrick McCarthy, JAGC, USN, testified at Omar Khadr’s sentencing following his guilty
plea; the Defense understands that he testified via videolink because he was deploved at the time
of the sentencing. He festified in substance that he had been at Guantanamo long enough to see
real jihadis, and Mr. Khadr was not one of them.

il o Dofonse expects CAPT Welsh to testify similarly on behalf of Mr. Khan.
He will say, for example, that the Mr. Khan he knew appeared to be someone who had gotten
caught up and was excited by his involvement in terrorism, in being a “big shot” in Karachi, but
he did not appear to realize fully what he was getting himself into. CAPT Welsh will testify
based on his interactions with Mr. Khan that Mr. Khan was not as dedicated or extremist in his
views as other high-value detainees at Guantanamo; his reaction to CIA detention and
Guantanamo was, “Holy shit, what did [ get myself into and how am [ going to get out of it?
How can I get back to my wife and daughter?” The answer was to cooperate with the U.S.
government, which Mr, Khan has done for seven years without wavering. Finally, CAPT Welsh
will testify that based on his personal knowledge and interactions with Mr. Khan, Mr. Khan must
be allowed to move beyond what he did.

i 1 Defense submits that such testimony would be invaluable to Mr. Khan at
sentencing, again, particularly coming from a senior Naval officer, testifying in person before his
peers on the panel

e o 7, Senior Medical Officer (Witness #31)

s | he Defense requests that the Military Judge order the Prosecution to
produce a senior medical officer for Carmp 7 to testify in person about Mr. Khan’s healtheare and

medical treatment. In particular, Mr. Khan requests a medical officer who will testify regarding

s sl
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his physical and mental health, including the lasting harm caused by his torture and abuse by the

CIA. For example, and without Hmitation, such an officer would testify about Mr. Khan’s

cars on his body consistent with his prior

torfure; nd that he has previously been hospitalized at

Guantanamo.
B/ FOUO Defense Expert Witnesses (Witnesses #32. 33)
—HAFOPO-As addressed in the motion to compel, the Prosecution has agreed to produce
Mr. Khan’s medical expert, .{31'_11’ itness #32), subject to the purpo rted cavent
imposed by the Convening Authority thai is addressed in the motion. The Prosecution has also
agreed to produce Mr. Khan’s torture expert, Mr. Steven Kleinman, subject to resolution of the

conflict issue addressed in the motion.
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ailisiliiibm] o mes Pavitt (Witness #40)

~HAOH0 Jose Rodripuez {Witness #42}

+Mir. Rodriquez was the head ofthe Counter Terrorism Center

-Ii’i that capacity, and as described in his tosture narrative Hard .fvfemw-es-

Filed with TJ Appeliate Exhibit 030 (Khan)
28 February 2019 Page 77 of 82

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE



UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

-when Mr. Rodriquez served as the Deputy Director of Operations, he was personally

responsible for approving the torture techniques very likely used on Mr. Khan.

Again, the Defense believes this witness will be extremely hostile to questioning and the
panel must view in-person testimony in order to adequately evaluate the demeanor of this

witness during his testimony.

O e oo

Filed with TJ Appeliate Exhibit 030 (Khan)
28 February 2019 Page 78 of 92

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE




UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

E—

Appeliate Exhibit 0

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE




UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE




UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

—n-n-mm-

Appeliate Exhibit 0

UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE




UNCLASSIFIED//FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

— RGO P, James Mitchell (Witness #63)

Dt Mitchell is a former SERE psychologist, who was

contracted with the CIA to develop and wmplement s torture program based on the concept of
“learned helplessness.” He is referred to throughout the Senate Intelligence Committee report as
“Grayson Swigert.” He has spoken openly and publicly about his development of the CIA
program, and his direet, personal involvement in waterbearding detainees, including in his
published torture memoir Enhanced Interrogaiion. Dr, Mitchell has also been deposed in

another torture case, Salim v. Mitchell, in federal court in Washington State.
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—HFOEEY The Defense anticipates based on his record of public remarks and his

deposition in Salim that while he is not likely o appear for testimony voluntarily, Dr. Mitchell
could be expected to testify fully and wnapologetically if competled. Dr. Mitchell’s in-person
testimony 1s essential, and likely to camry particular weight and credibility, becanse he is perhaps

the most well-known individual who is connected to the CIA torture program.
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BEPARTMENT OF DEFEMSE
OFFICE OF MILITARY COMBMISBIONS
4800 MARK CENTER DRIVE
ALEXANDRIA, VA 22350-27100

Felwpary 22, 2019

MEMORANTIUM FOR MS. KATYA JESTIN, DEFENSE COUNSEL

SUBJECT: Defennss Request for the Appolntment and Funding of ih:_as an
Tapert Witness — U8 v, Majid Klam

[ reviswed e o1, which is dated Pebruary 15, 2019, for the sppointment
znnd fimding of B, s a defense expert withess in the field of forensic
psychistey. For the 1easons set [ori BRloW, YOUr request is approved,

¥ our request for DI-S an expert witness falls under the provisions of your
“Offer for n Pretris! Agreament” (Preirial Agreement) of February 12, 2012, the erms of which
‘were acoepted by a prior Convenmg Avwthority on February 15, 2012, The agreement was
secepted by e Military Fudge on February 29, 2012, and, thet same day, in accordancs with his
pleas, Mr. Khan was found gesilly of the charged offenses, Undex paragraph 23 of the Pretial
Agrecment, you agree nal 1 seek 10 yelain of present al a pre-senicncing begring wiore (han two
sxpert constiians of witnesses ot Govensmant expense. While my decision on your request for
Mr. Steven Kleiwman is pending your compliance willi the Commission’s oxder in AE 020E for
the filing of spprapwiste waivers, thisrequest for Drm:ﬁstimas one of the two expert
consultanis or withesses.

Rude for Military Conunissions 703(d) establishes the procedmrs for requesting expert
witnesses and requizes the requesting party 10 provide notice 1o the non-requesting party. This
prosess helps me to evaluste the need for the expert assistance sought, and to detepnine whether
alterntives are preferable 50 as to aveid wasteful expenditures. You provided the Government a
capy of this request on February 13, 2019, Aceordingdy, I will consider fhe substancs of your
roquest to determine whether the expert withess is necessary. ’

A accased is entitled 1o the employmient of an expert, provided that he or she can
demonsteate the necessity far the expert assistmee. See Ahe v. Oklahou, 470 1LS. 68 (1983
As fise dke Coust explnined, an indigent defendant s entitled to acesss “fhe v materials
integral 10 the building of m effective defense.” Jd, at 77. The 4ke Court noted that sn indigent
defendant is wot constimitionaily entitled to “alf the assistance that his wealthier counerpant
sight buy,” but that “fondamental faismess entitles indigent defendants 1o an adequate
epportunity to present their cleims fhirly within the adversary system.” I, Militery courts have
embraced this rite i a sexvies of opinions spoaning decedes. See Lired Siwtes v. Hrevnadion, 62
ML 137, 143 (C AAF, 2005); United Statss v Nelempi, 43 M., 313, 319 ¢C.AAT. 1996y
Uited States v, Gonzales. 39 MUY, 459, 461 (C.MLA. 1994); United Stares v, Robinsan., 39 M.
38, 89 (0. M.A. 1994); United States v. Garvies, 22 M.J. 288, 291 (C.MLA. 1986}, United Seates
w. Canpon, 74 M.I. 746, 730-52 (4.C.C.A. 2015} {"H the defense demonsivates that expert
assistance is velevent end necessary, then an expert shall be coiployed at goverument SXpense 1o
assist the defense.”")

sneasacnee: SN onosroron
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To demonstrate necessity, an accused must show something more than a mere possibility
of assistance from a requested expert. An aceused must show that there exists a reasonable
probability both that the expert would be of assistance to (he defense and that denial of the cxpart
assistance would result in a fundamentally unlbir trial. See Unifed States v. Gunkle, 55 M.J. 26,
31 (C.A.AT. 2001); Unired States v. Robinsonr, 39 M.J. 88, 89 (C M.A. 1994). In demoustrating
the necessity for expert assistance, the defense must show: (1) why the expert assistance is
needed,; (2} what the expert assistance would accomplish for the accused; and (3) why the
defense counscl is unable 1o gather and present the evidence that the expert assistance would be
able to develop. See Gunkle, 55 M. ar 32; Gonzalez, 39 M.J. at 461,

this reguest, you incorporate the justification provided in your August 1, 2018, request
for Dr_Has an expert consultan!, and you state that, it appointed, he would assist the
defense in explaining how and why individuals like Mr. Khan become involved in Al Qaeda and
terrorist aetivitics, and he would offer an asses M, Khan's polential for recidivism or
future dangerousness, You also proffer that Dr, vill testify in support of un impending
motion for pretrial punishment credit. The Military Commissions Act of 2009 states that the
provisions of the UCMJ (chapter 47, U.S. Code Title 10) are applicable only “to the extent
provided by the (crms of such provisions, or by this chapter,” and “many of the provisions of
chiapter 47 of this title are by their terms inapplicable to military commissions.” 10 US.C. §§
48b(d)(2), 248b(e). Specifically, Asticle 13 of the UCMJ and Rule for Cour-Martial 305,
pertainiog to pretrial punislunent, do not apply to Mr. Khan, as he was detained pursvant to the
law of war. See 10 U.S.C. § M8b{c); 10 US.C. § 813. Additionally, your impending motion
seems divectly inconsistent with paragraph 11 of the Pretrial Agreement, which states that ance
his guilty plea is accepted, Mr. Khan will nol initiste any legal claims against the United States
Govermment regardine his capture, detention, or confincment conditions prior to the plea.
Consequently, DH net approved to festify in support of any motion for pretris!
punishment credit,

Ewill nole that for the reasons stated in your request, I find that you have demonstrated
the necessity for un expert wilness in forensic psychiatry since there iy al least a reasonuble
probability s witoess with that expertise would provide valuable mitigation evidence for Mr.

,Wtencmg hearing, Accozdingly, | approve the appointment and fundi .

| as an expeit witness. Accordingly, | authorize expert fees for t the rate
of §500.00 per hour for up to 10{ hours, totaling no more than $30,000,00, The terms of this
authorizution are in the atlached Memomndum of Agreement.

Please note that my approval of the appointment and fimding for Dr. does not
constitute authorization for lim to travel. Travel most be approved on a case-by-case basis, in
accordance with the terms of the Memorandnm of Agreement, which requires a showing of
necessity for each proposed trip. In gecordance with the Joint Travel Regulations, the following
nvist be inchuded in each official travel request before it can be approved: location(s) of travel,
dates of travel, purpose of travel, and an explanation of why alternative means of communication

capnot be used. "
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Chapter 13-9, Regulation for Trial by Military Commission 2011), please bave Dr.
ﬂigﬂ and return to my office the allached Memoraadum of Agresment belore he beging
any work on this case.

Wi Petnitus?

Melinda L. Pesritane
Convening Authority
For Military Comdssions

el ———
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MEMORANDUM OF ACRE ;
WITH EXPERT WITNESS (m{

5 Dr._s hereby retained as an expert wilness, with spectal

expertise in the field of forensic psychaiegy, to assiet defense counsel on behalf of My,
Maijid Khan in the military commission case of United States v. Majid Khan.

2. Dr.-ciqmwledges, mdersmmisl and agrees to all the terms contained in

1his Memorandom of Agreement. D urther agrees o thic following:

a. To assist defense counsel as a witness for the purpose of testifying about why
Mr. Kahn became involved with Al Qaeda; to testify sbout Mr. Khan's risk of |
recidivismy or future dangerousness; snd to offer his expert opiiion on whether
Mr, Eahn sulfers from any mental health issves resulting from his detention,

b. Toreview, ag nay be necessary, fifes, reports, records, aud docunsents,
necessary 1o lestify about the areas listed above in subparaorsnh o However,
nothing in this memorandum of agreement allows D:.ﬂa} eview,
possess, of retain, any document, file, record, o report not within the seonrity

clearnnce level of?)r-

To submit an inveics for services rendered within thirty {30) days of the
performance of the expert services, as divected by the Office of Military
Conunissions Coniracting Officer’s Representative (COR).

b

d. To submit the following information; locations of travel, dates of wavel,
purpose of fravel, and an explenation why he cannot use an altepaste means of
communication to accomplish his duties, sud a completed Invitational Travel
Worksheet to the Chief Defense Counsel, who will certify that the travel
complies with the JTR. The Chizl Defense Counsel wili provide the
ceptification to e Office of the Chiefl Befense Connsel AdmiyTrove! section,
who will drafi an ¥T0 and send it, along with the centification of the Chief
Defense Counsel, to the OMC Travel and Transportation Section for approval
in accordance with the ITR for-each Invitation Travel Qrder he requires,

+e. To submit 2 Government travel voucher for payment of travel expenses
mcugred, following the insteuctions provided with said travel voucher. Expest
{ees ave not authorized for travel time,

f. To certify that the fee charged for his servicss as an expeit wimsss are not
greater than s normal prolessional rate for such services.
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" MEMORANDUM OF AGREE]
WITH EXPERT WITNESS (Dr
3. The Government agrees to the folowing:

a. To pay D;‘-n expert foe of $500.00 per hour for up to 100 hours
when professional advice, services, and testimony are rendered. Payment will
be made up o & maximum of $50,000.00 (100 hours at $300.00 per how) for -
expeit fees. This authorization currently expices on April 14, 2019, the end of
the performanes period of the contract used to provide the necessary payvments
fo experts unless an option to exiend the contract is exercised or the contract is
renewed. 1¥the oplion to extend the vonlrast is exercised, o the contract is
renewed, defense counsel will be notified that you may continue o perform
your dulies under this authorization after Apnif 14, 2012,

b. Compensation for n-court testimony is mthorized under this Memorandum of
Agreement,

0. To approve and issue Invitational Travel Orders in accordance with the JTR
when travel is necessary for Dr o perform his duties. The
Government agrees 1o pay acvtual travel costs, either coach air travel or
mileage in nccordance with the TTR. The Governmeant also agrees to pay per
dien for meals, and the lesser of actual cost of fedging of the' Govermnent

* local lodging rate, meluding payiment for all travel days, in accordance with
the JTR. Exper foes are not authorized for travel] time.

d. Payment under this agreement has been approved by the Convening
Authority, Gffice of Military Commissions, and the balance will be paid by
the United States Government,

Office of the Conwvening Amhoriiy/ Date Expert Wimess Date

bt
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